
Minutes 

Bristol Space Needs Committee 

August 1, 2016 

 

Present:  Nik Coates, Susan Duncan, Burt Williams, Ned Gordon, Sandra Heaney, Ben LaRoche, Dave 

Carr, Barbara Greenwood, Michael Lewis, and Jeff Shackett. 

 

Absent: Paul Manganiello 

 

Others Present: Stacy Buckley, Vincent Migliore, Eric Palson, Jason LaCombe, and Mike Izard. 

  

The meeting was called to order at 6:40 by Chair Ned Gordon. 

 

Minutes:   

Nik Coates made a motion to approve the minutes from July 11 2016, seconded by Michael Lewis. The 

Committee voted 9-0 to approve the minutes. 

 

Discussion: 

Mike Izard, Principal Planner at LRPC, presented population changes in Bristol and the Lakes Region to 

the Committee. 

 NH has had a significant increase in people over the age of 65. 

 In 2000, the population of people 20-29 years of age in Bristol was 10.1%. 

 In 2010, a little less than 10% of the population in Bristol was age 70+. 

 Population in Bristol over the next 30 years will show a decline and then slow growth. 

 The median age of the population in Bristol is 43.5 years. 

 There is a bubble coming through the population of people born in the 1970s. 

 From 1990-2010, there has been a 23% decrease in the millennial population, ages 20-29. 

 What will make a difference to keeping the millennial population: housing choices, 

transportation choices, natural resource functions and quality, community and economic 

vitality, and infrastructure and internet access. 

 Ned Gordon asked if there is an increase in the aging population will there be an inward 

migration of people who will seek to retire to Bristol.  Mr. Izard replied that the amount and 

type of housing choices will have a huge impact on that. The ability for seniors to move around 

easily is a key factor also. 

 

Stacy Buckley, Superintendent of the Newfound Area School District presented information on school 

populations and building conditions with the committee. 

 A demographic study was sent to the committee which shows that the district is losing students. 

 The district entered into a 10 year agreement with the Town of Hill which should stabilize the 

numbers.  There are about 10 kids per year per grade level coming from Hill. 



 From June 2015-June 2016 there has been an increase of 44 students, primarily at the Middle 

School and New Hampton Community School. In Bristol there are 11 more Kindergarten kids 

than last year. 

 How the district can attract families include providing a strong education, good reputation, 

buildings kept up both exterior and interior. 

 The buildings are aging, BES is 93 years old, and there has not been a lot done to the buildings. 

 A configuration study was developed, but a school would drastically need to be changed to fit 

another school’s population in it if another school was closed. 

 All classrooms are pretty much at capacity. 

 Improvements made to schools include painting, beautification of outside main areas, new 

phone system in all schools, updated video camera systems, and redid the gym floors. 

 Ms. Buckley presented a list of repairs and improvements that need to be made at each school 

in the district.  The repairs are very extensive, with a total cost of about 30 million dollars for all 

the projects. 

 Dave Carr asked what the school population will be in 25 years.  Ms. Buckley replied that it 

should be stable. Enrollment is declining in the state, but to keep parents in the community 

there needs to be a good school system.  

 Ned Gordon asked what the timeline is for the school space needs committee.  Ms. Buckley 

replied that the School Board told the committee to look at alternatives than what was 

concluded by the committee initially. The committee was told to relook at renovation costs and 

to find accurate figures for the renovations.  Hopefully by winter the committee will have 

numbers to present.  The plan would have to fit into the tax cap though, which is very tough to 

do. 

SMP discussion: 

 Mr. Coates informed the committee that preliminary sketches were done by SMP. The 

current discussion by the committee is tending to lean towards a new town office and the 

Police Department housed in the current building.   Jeff Shackett commented that this is the 

best use of the Smith lot site at first glance.  Jason LaCombe commented that SMP did stop 

short of doing design work but can look at a plan, budget, and time frame.  Eric Palson 

commented that the initial thinking was an expansion of the Police Department and to 

connect the two building together.  

 Susan Duncan asked if a combined building is a good option or separate buildings.  Jason 

LaCombe replied that the process would be to lay out visually what makes sense for the 

town and do a cost-benefit analysis before deciding. 

 Nik Coates asked if there are drawings of other buildings that the committee could look at. 

Eric Palson replied that there are images that could drive what the building would look like. 

 Ned Gordon asked SMP about compensation for services.  

 Eric Palson commented that the town has an excellent starting point but have done no 

design. An assessment of what buildings are available needs to be done. The Police 

Department is a less flexible kind of building than town offices as there are very specific 



requirements for the police.  The town needs to develop criteria and do a quick assessments 

and ranking of needs and uses. 

 Ned Gordon commented that the committee has done due diligence and have come to a 

consensus  but that the committee needs to determine the size of the town office building 

before looking at a site.  Sandra Heaney commented that based on Chief Lewis’s 

presentation, the committee had discussed that it was more cost effective to have the town 

offices move and have the Police Department take over the current town office building.  

 Barbara Greenwood commented that the committee needs to get the support of the people 

and they need to get the public input. 

 Jason LaCombe commented that the big picture is what the project is. SMP can do a quick 

conceptual design study on the parcels for town offices and look at all viable options. Once 

the committee goes through the process, there will be a site plan and a building plan. There 

is enough time before Town Meeting to do this.  Eric Palson commented that the committee 

needs to look at the function of the building for an efficient design. 

 Michael Lewis asked if it were possible to do some conceptual design work for town offices 

and contingent upon approval at Town Meeting, the work will be done on spec.   Ned 

Gordon commented that the decision from Town Meeting was to have a group of town 

people to do what SMP would do but the committee needs the information from SMP to let 

the decision of the site be made.   Mr. Gordon commented that at a minimum the 

committee needs to know the square footage of a town office building. The committee does 

not have the expertise on these things and can compensate SMP for this. Eric Palson 

commented that picking the right place and the right configuration are the most important 

decisions.  

 Susan Duncan asked what the cost of renovation vs. new construction is .  Eric Palson 

replied that there are square foot numbers for both of these and that having the shell of a 

building saves 15% of the cost of construction. 

 Sandra Heaney commented that the committee needs to get a handle on what the needs of 

the town offices are and what space is needed. Susan Duncan commented that there are 

possible sites in town but that the square footage needs are not known. 

 Ned Gordon commented that the committee’s job is to write a report. The committee needs 

to look at alternatives and give a preferential alternative to hire an architect to design. 

 Sandra Heaney commented that the price of all the options should be shown to the public 

and then get their feedback. 

 Nik Coates asked what does a modern building need and what a feasible amount of space 

for those needs is.  Eric Palson replied that there is a checklist that the committee can use to 

determine needs.  Mr. Coates commented that the committee needs guidance from SMP 

and to have examples of other communities to look at.  Mr. Coates commented that the 

committee should start with the series of questions for determining town office needs. 

 Ned Gordon commented that based on the information from the population presentation 

an expansive building does not need to be built. Nik Coates commented that the Fire 



Department and EMS would most likely need to be expanded based on the aging 

population.  

 Ned Gordon requested that SMP do a proposal of how big a town office building will need to 

be and will it fit on the Smith lot. Nik Coates commented that what needs to be inside a 

town office building needs to be included also.  The proposal from SMP will be discussed at 

the next meeting. 

 

The next meeting will be Monday, August 8, 2016 7:00PM at the Town Offices.   

 

Action Items: 

  

Public Comments:  

Vincent Migliore, School Board Chair, recommended that the committee watch the video Communities 

and Consequences, which is posted on the district’s web site.  Mr. Migliore commented that in his 

opinion the district needs to close a school to save money and reduce taxes which makes the area more 

attractive to live in.  If BES is closed that would free up a facility that the town could potentially use.  Ms. 

Duncan commented that the town would then have to do all the repairs to the building that Ms. Buckley 

presented earlier.  Ms. Duncan commented that repurposing buildings is a good thing if it is done wisely. 

 

Adjourn: Susan Duncan made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Sandra Heaney.  The committee voted 

10-0 in favor of the motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:57PM. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

 

 

 

 

 

 


